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Initial construction of the Western Portland Cement Company buildings began in 
1889 and continued up to December 4, 1890, when all departments were in operation. 
The main building consisted primarily of brick from the local Pressed Brick Company 
and some of the brick was made out of clay found on their own land. The main buildinq 
measured 320 feet long, 130 feet wide, and 50 feet high at the apex. The rest of 
the brick and wood structures consisted of mud basins, six kilns, plus storage and 
shipping warehouses. All structures were located four miles west of Yankton, South 
Dakota, just south of the chalk cliff. Horse-drawn carts hauled the chalk rock over a 
narrow guage track. Clay was moved up the bluff above the bu 1'! dines and sent to the 
mill by another narrow guage track in cars that worked over an automatic switch.

Three artesian wells were dug on the property of which one was described as being 
eight inches in diametr-y r^o thrusting water out at an average of 150 pounds par 
square inch. All three wells are still flowing. The actual industrial plant occupied 
ten acres out of the 3,000 acres controlled by Western Portland Cement Company. A 
broad guage railroad was built along the bottom to Yankton, which was the shipping 
point and also the residence for the cement plant employees.

In 1904 Western Portland Cement shut down its operation for remodeling. The company 
quadrupled its annual output with four new rotary kilns so large that three railroad 
flat-cars were needed to transport each one to the factory. There was also a switch at 
this time from a semi-wet process to a dry process. In turn it was decided to alter 
the fuel type from coke to coal for financial reasons. This modification meant the 
purchasing of coal crushing and drying machinery and increased operational costs. 
Following a financial breakdown in 1910, the plant was finally sold to a cement company 
out of Sandusky, Ohio, who ordered a complete shutdown, dismantled the machinery, and 
shipped it east. There were periodic rumors of re-opening since the factory was not 
completely dismantled until after World War I, but the offices had closed in their 
downtown location and the plant was destroyed.

Today only the ruins of the plant remain. The only highly visible structure 
of the plant buildings is one smoke stack from the kilns with the arched kiln 
ruin at its base. Brick foundations of the outbuildings, large vats and the 
artesian wells can be found. The artesian wells that created mineral water 
sloughs are still in existence.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Western Portland Cement Company started in 1891 as a result of the discovery 
of the chalk rock bluffs west of Yankton and other parts of the Niobrara formation. 
Mr. Robert Yates, an Omaha, Nebraska resident and a business colleague, Mr. Will aim 
Plankinton, a'weal thy Mi^wa-jkee capitalist, formerly of England, and Mr, John W, 
Summers, an expert in making portland cement arrived in V1W and herp.n tests. Mr. 
Summers, a former manager of a large cement nlo.it in K'est 0rayten. Middlesex, 
represented English interests in the business. Mr. Plankinton, a representative of 
the Chicago-Milwaukee-St. Paul Railroad had intentions of producing inexpensive 
freight rates for the factory when built.

The site near Yankton was decided upon by its location on the river, the two rail­ 
roads running out of the city, and the condition of the chalk rock bluffs. The trio 
quickly bought 300 acres of land with money invested by both the city of Yankton 
and Western Portland Cement Company, promising employment for hundreds of people 
and bringing new business to the city and state.

Josiah A. Pierson, a prominent land owner who sold a portion of his land to the 
cemsnt company, platted and began to build a small town next to the cement factory. 
The town of Pierson was intended to be a communitee of cement workers, but the 
company felt it beneficial for the employees to live in Yankton and commute by rail­ 
road. The town was platted on May 20, 1890 and was vacated seven years later having 
Only a few residences having been constructed.

After two years of extensive testing, the clay and chalk rock was found 99% pure.
Starting with an excellent record, the Western Portland Cement Company began oper- 

i ations at least ten years before the American portland cement industry initiated 
1 its push from infancy to late adolescence around 1901. The plant was finished in 
pate 1890, and when running full scale it employed seventy men. It sent out its 
Ifirst shipment of cement in 1891. Portland cement was a growing industry in the 
United States at the time. Tests on the cement were sent to England which proved
pat when 37 days old, the mixture showed a tensile strength of 1,080 pounds per
Square inch, more than English portland cement.

Cbring the first year 31,813 barrels, weighing 380 pounds each, were produced. 
T|irigs were looking up even more when Western Portland Cement Company was presti- 
glousTy awarded first premium over all other building cements at the Chicago Worlds 
Fair in 1893. Production increased to 61,725 in 1895 but slumped back to 24,000 
barrels in 1896. Its daily capacity of 250 barrels provided semi-wet process cement
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to such cities as Omaha, Milwaukee, Salt Lake City, and Helena, Montana, for use 
in construction of government buildings. This company was also asked to furnish 
part of the cement used in making of the Panama Canal and in the course of time 
provided cement for the building needs of the western half of the United States.

Even with good sales the company could not keep out of the red, and problems arose 
causing a shutdown. The plant was reorganized and sold to New York and Chicago 
capitalists. Operations continued without much change until 1904 when the mill 
was again shut down for remodeling. The improvements and changes from semi-wet to 
dry process resulted in an increase of production fourfold. Fifty thousand 1 barrels 
were produced in 1903 compared to 248,000 barrels in 1905. The four new kilns and 
the switch to coal, added to a decline in the price of cement due to eastern 
competition, began to take its toll.

Company president, William Plankinton, died in 1905, leaving his position to his 
less knowledgeable son who was unable to sustain the firm's successful operation. 
Along with the heavy debts, it was hinted that perhaps an attempt to mix too much 
common earth with clay caused the quality to drop. Carloads of cement were 
actually rejected and returned to the plant.

Around 1910, European imports were lessened by the increase of cement production 
in the United States. The McKinley tariff of 1890 also slowed the rate of imports. 
The price of cement per barrel declined from $1.75 in 1905 to $1.00 in 1909. The 
plant was sold in 1910 to a Sandusky, Ohio cement company. The new owners decided 
to shut down the plant, dismantle the machinery, and ship it east.

The significance of the Western Portland Cement Plant is that it was an important 
factor in promoting the use of port!and cement products both in South Dakota and 
throughout the United States. Yankton became known as the "Cement City", the 
factory contributing to its growth and development. The plant is said to have 
been one of the largest and most complete mills at the time it was in full operation 
The Western Portland Cement Plant was the only in-state source of cement in South 
Dakota during its formative years. Its loss reflected the expansion of the cement 
industry in the United States.

Item Number 10 page 1

The exact delineation of the property is as follows: Beginning at the northeast 
corner of Section 17, Township 93 North, Range 56 West, proceed west 410 meters to 
the unnamed stream, then southeast along the eastern margin of stream/pond to a point 
200 meters south of the northern boundary, then east to the section line between 
Sections 17 & 16, then north along that line to the point of origin.
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Western Portland Cement Company 
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